
 

PC Minutes 10-29-15 

 

 

 1 

City of Washington Terrace 2 
                                                3 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

Minutes of a Regular Planning Commission Meeting held on  5 
Thursday, October 29, 2015 6 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 7 
County of Weber, State of Utah          8 

_____________________________________________________________________ 9 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  10 
Chairman Wallace Reynolds 11 
Commissioner Scott Barker 12 
Commissioner Larry Weir 13 
Commissioner T.R. Morgan 14 
Commissioner Charles Allen 15 
Vice- Chair Scott Larsen – excused 16 
Commissioner Dan Johnson- excused 17 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 18 
City Building Official Jeff Monroe   19 
City Attorney Bill Morris 20 
 21 
Others Present  22 
None  23 
 24 

1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 25 
 26 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 27 
 28 

3. WELCOME  29 
 30 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 31 
 32 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 33 
 Motion by Commissioner Barker 34 

 Seconded by Commissioner Morgan 35 
 to approve the agenda 36 

 Approved unanimously (5-0) 37 
  38 

        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR JULY 30, 2015 39 
Commissioner Allen strongly recommended that the language in lines 68-75 be deleted in 40 
their entire because he stated that the comments are derogatory towards several Council 41 
Members. He stated that he feels that it is unprofessional and disrespectful. Chairmen 42 
Reynolds stated that there is nothing derogatory in the remarks and that Commissioner 43 
Morgan was just stating Council voting facts. He stated that the motion is to approve the 44 
minutes of what happened at the meeting and not what may or may not have been said 45 
before or after the meeting. Commissioner Allen stated that he takes exception to the 46 
reasoning, stating that he feels the comments were a personal attack on the Council 47 



 

PC Minutes 10-29-15 

 

 

Members who voted the way that they did. He stated that no one should be questioned 48 
on the way that they voted. Commissioner Morgan stated that he only stated what 49 
happened and was not trying to be derogatory, noting that he was stating the history of 50 
the ordinance. Commissioner Weir stated that he feels that the minutes should be kept as 51 
written.  52 
 53 

  54 
 Motion by Commissioner Weir 55 

 Seconded by Commissioner Barker 56 
 to approve the minutes of July 30, 2015 57 

 Approved 3-0 58 
 Commissioner Weir- Aye 59 

 Commissioner Barker- Aye 60 
 Chairman Reynolds- Aye 61 
 Commissioner Allen -Nay 62 

 Commissioner Morgan abstained his vote with the reason that it is  63 
  his comment called into question. 64 

 65 
5. NEW BUSINESS            66 

    67 
            5.1  MOTION/ORDINANCE 15-08: MOTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL  68 
                    OF ORDINANCE 15-08 TO AMEND SECTION 17.48.010 “ SWIMMING  69 
                    POOL AMENDMENTS”       70 
 71 
Monroe stated that the current ordinance does not follow the ICC Swimming Pool Code, stating 72 
that Washington Terrace is more restrictive. He stated that changing the ordinance would reduce 73 
the parameter 10 foot rule to a 5 foot rule. Commissioner Morgan wanted to know if non-74 
conforming existing pools would be grandfathered in. Monroe stated that any existing pools 75 
would exceed the parameter distance being proposed. Chairman Reynolds asked how many 76 
permanent pools are in the Terrace. Monroe stated that there are quite a few and he knows of at 77 
least 20 permanent pools. Chairman Reynolds noted that above ground pools are sometimes 78 
closer than 5 feet. Monroe stated that he tries to monitor those pools that are out of compliance.  79 
Monroe stated that there are about 2-4 new pool requests per year. Monroe stated that the 80 
ordinance would also apply to hot tubs. Commissioner Allen asked if “No Trespassing” signs are 81 
required on fences. Monroe replied that they are not required and stated that owners  have to get 82 
a building permit if there is electrical equipment or an above ground pool over 24 inches high to 83 
make sure they are in regulation. 84 

 85 
Motion by Commissioner Morgan 86 
Seconded by Commissioner Weir 87 

To recommend approval of Ordinance 15-08 to 88 
Amend section 17.48.010 “Swimming Pool Amendments” 89 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 90 
          91 
            5.2  DISCUSSION:  LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS FOR PARKSTRIPS  IN 92 
                   RESIDENTIAL AREAS 93 



 

PC Minutes 10-29-15 

 

 

Monroe presented a discussion on park strips in residential areas focusing on safety concerns, 94 
nuisance issues, and impact on the City’s infrastructure.  Monroe stated that fallen leaves also 95 
cause a problem for snow plowing. Commissioner Allen suggested an ordinance change that 96 
does not allow any new trees to be placed in park strips. Commissioner Allen also suggested that 97 
water meters in the park strip need to be available for the public works crew. Monroe stated that 98 
the crew informs him of meters that are covered and he sends notices. Commissioner Allen 99 
stated that he likes the idea that permits are needed from Monroe before anything can be put into 100 
a park strip. Chairman Reynolds stated that he feels that attempts to put rocks and gravel in the 101 
park strips becomes a worse problem. Monroe stated that the City has spoken to an arborist and 102 
landscapers as to determine what types of trees would be good to put in the park strip. 103 
Commissioner Barker stated that he would not like to say no trees allowed at all and would like 104 
to allow certain approved trees that would not cause issues for the City. Monroe stated that there 105 
are a few trees on the current approved list that he would like to be deleted, such as maple trees 106 
and crab apple trees. Commissioner Barker stated that he would like the list to be refined and 107 
does not want  to take the option away from residents as to whether they can have trees or not. 108 
Commissioner Weir would like to Pfizer trees added to the list of unapproved trees. Monroe 109 
agreed, stating that the trees overgrow onto the sidewalk and also obstruct site lines. Chairman 110 
Reynolds stated that he has noted several hedges that are overgrown onto the sidewalk. 111 
Chairman Reynolds recommendation is to review the list and not allow trees with a huge root 112 
system, trash trees, or shrubs and trees that will overgrow. Chairman Reynolds stated that some 113 
trees have pods that fall and scatter around. He would like to see a refined list s of trees that are 114 
not nuisance trees. Commissioner Morgan noted that at some point trees with root problems will 115 
cause sidewalks needing to get fixed at the City expense and agrees that staff should refine the 116 
list to trees that will not cause nuisance or issues with the root system. Monroe stated that trees 117 
also can cause problems for snow plows or fire trucks if the trees are overgrown. Chairman 118 
Reynolds recommended including shrubs and hedges. Commissioner Weir agrees and 119 
recommended foliage as a whole should be considered. Chairman Reynolds would like rocks and 120 
pavers included in the ordinance. Monroe stated that they are covered as park of the landscape 121 
ordinance. 122 
Monroe stated that he can tell a resident to remove a tree if it is causing major damage as part of 123 
the nuisance ordinance, however, a tree is heavily protected if it is a healthy tree. Monroe noted 124 
that the City can cut back trees or remove them entirely if they are a nuisance but stated that his 125 
budget cannot accommodate this cost to the City.   126 
Monroe will review the ordinance and bring back to the Commission.  127 

 128 
            5.3  DISCUSSION: OPEN SPACE INFILL PROPERTY  129 
 130 
Monroe stated that many of the infill lots are in the old R2-R4 areas. He stated that according to 131 
a 2007 study, the City has 15 to 20 percent higher low to moderate income housing than other 132 
cities in the area. Monroe stated that the ordinance was changed in 2007 to no longer allow 133 
multi- family housing. Monroe stated that this changed stopped development in those areas that 134 
have undeveloped properties because the developers would like to keep in the context of the area 135 
and build “like use” multi-dwelling buildings. Monroe stated that there are some developers that 136 
would like to build higher density buildings. Monroe stated that the City would benefit from 137 
some of the properties being developed as this would cut down on weeds and blight situations. 138 
Monroe asked the Commission as to what direction they would like to see the City go towards. 139 
Chairman Reynolds wanted to know the possibility of allowing town homes or patio homes. 140 



 

PC Minutes 10-29-15 

 

 

Monroe stated that  they would have to meet the city standards and most likely result in  141 
reduced footprint setback standards. Monroe noted that many rental units are not being kept up 142 
and are not HOA maintained.  Monroe stated that properties are not moving because developers 143 
would like to build duplexes or townhomes that would be single family owned. Monroe stated 144 
that a nice product would be property that can be created that has an HOA and is single family 145 
owned.  Monroe stated that he is approached by developers all the time with their questions 146 
concerning zoning changes. He stated that if the Commission and City are totally against 147 
changing the ordinance, he will inform the developers. He stated that if there is interest in 148 
changing the code to allow for different types of housing, he will review the options and bring 149 
the information to the Commission and Council. Chairman Reynolds stated that the issue is roads 150 
and access. Monroe stated that PRUD’s are no longer allowed in the City. Chairman Reynolds 151 
stated that there are too many rental properties in the City. Morris stated that the biannual 152 
disproportionate plan shows a high amount of rentals. Morris suggested that a recommendation 153 
to staff could be no more rental properties. Morris stated that an option could be that duplex 154 
condos could be developed in vacant infill properties, but they have to be owner occupied. 155 
Morris stated that Harrisville City had apartment like units that began as  condominiums, but 156 
have since been turned into rentals. He stated that the City should cautious of investments that 157 
turn into rentals because there are many loopholes.  Chairman Reynolds stated that an option for 158 
development could be owner occupied building structures like single unit patio homes. Morris 159 
stated that the HOA can control the properties by saying no rentals and the HOA CCR can be 160 
approved initially by the City, however the HOA can change down the road. He stated that the 161 
situation becomes complicated. Chairman Allen stated that he would like to work with the 162 
owners on reuse areas that are run down.  He stated that reuse areas are parcels that are small and 163 
underutilized buildings that are replaced buildings that add vitality and purpose to the area. 164 
Morris stated that the government has an Urban Renewal Plan which has tools to identify those 165 
properties and will take the suggestion under advisement and it will be added to the discussions. 166 
Chairman Reynolds stated that the City is inundated with rentals and would not approve anything 167 
with rentals. Commissioner Allen agreed. Chairman Reynolds recommended future discussions 168 
on ideas for infill and owner occupied HOA’s. Morris suggested finding a patio home plan that 169 
the Commission approves and the City can write an ordinance to fit the plan. Monroe stated that 170 
there are several developers that would like patio homes. Morris recommended Monroe to give 171 
direction to developers to bring in a plan that might be worth looking at, noting that the 172 
developers should do the work instead of Monroe. Monroe agreed that developers can bring 173 
plans to have the City review and review City regulations. 174 

           175 
      6.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  176 
          ZONING ISSUES 177 
  178 
Monroe stated that Golden West Credit Union is moving along with their upgrades and are about 179 
a month out from occupation.  180 
Monroe stated that the City is looking into purchasing 4 acres for a new public works shop. 181 
Monroe stated that he has not heard anything from the Boyer Company concerning the 182 
demolition of their building. 183 
Monroe stated that the hospital will be completing remodeling. 184 

 185 
7. UPCOMING EVENTS    186 

November 17th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 187 



 

PC Minutes 10-29-15 

 

 

November 19th:Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 188 
 189 

8. MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   190 
Motion by Commissioner Weir 191 

Seconded by Commissioner Morgan 192 
To adjourn the meeting 193 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 194 
Time: 7:09 p.m. 195 

 196 
________________________________       ____________________________ 197 
Date Approved                                             City Recorder 198 


